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Staff Recommendation

COMES NOW the Staff of the Missouri Public Service Commission (the “Commission”) and for its recommendation states:


1.
On March 19, 2004, Ellington Telephone Company (Ellington) petitioned the Commission for a two-year suspension until May 24, 2006, of the intermodal porting obligations of the Federal Communication Commission’s November 10, 2003, Memorandum Opinion and Order and Further Notice of Proposed Rulemaking. Ellington states that implementing wireline-to-wireless LNP will require software purchasing and activation as well as translation work. Ellington is an incumbent local exchange carrier with fewer than two percent of the Nation’s subscriber lines.


2.
Federal statute 47 U.S.C. § 251 (f) (2) provides:

SUSPENSIONS AND MODIFICATIONS FOR RURAL CARRIERS. – A local exchange carrier with fewer than 2 percent of the Nation’s subscriber lines installed in the aggregate nationwide may petition a State commission for a suspension or modification of the application of a requirement or requirements of subsection (b) or (c) to telephone exchange service facilities specified in such petition.  The State commission shall grant such petition to the extent that, and for such duration as, the State commission determines that such suspension or modification –

(A) is necessary –

(i) to avoid a significant adverse economic impact on users of telecommunications services generally;

(ii) to avoid imposing a requirement that is unduly economically burdensome; or

(iii) to avoid imposing a requirement that is technically infeasible; and

(B) is consistent with the public interest, convenience, and necessity.

The State commission shall act upon any petition filed under this paragraph within 180 days after receiving such petition.  Pending such action, the State commission may suspend enforcement of the requirement or requirements to which the petition applies with respect to the petitioning carrier or carriers.





3.
In the attached Memorandum, labeled Appendix A, the Staff recommends that the Commission deny Ellington a suspension of the requirements of 47 U.S.C. §§ 251(b) and (c) as they pertain to local number portability for the full two years Ellington requests, and instead allow Ellington six months from the date of the Commission’s order denying suspension to implement local number portability.


4.
However, Staff further recommends that the Commission approve Ellington’s request for modification in paragraph 23 of Ellington’s Petition regarding the rating and routing issues raised by the local number portability requirements.  In order to grant its approval, Staff recommends that the Commission state in its order that neither Ellington, nor its wireline customers, will be responsible for any transport or long distance charges associated with porting numbers and any associated calls outside Ellington’s local service area.  

5.
As noted in the Staff’s Memorandum at Appendix A, the Federal Communications Commission has found that “the rating and routing issues raised by the rural wireline carriers have been raised in the context of non-ported numbers and are before the [Federal Communications Commission] in other proceedings.”
  Accordingly, these rating and routing issues are subject to determination by the Federal Communications Commission.  Ellington notes in its Petition at para. 27:  “Granting Petitioner’s request will … provide more time for the FCC to clarify the LNP requirements for small, rural telephone companies.”  Thus, Staff recommends its grant of modification be conditional until such time as the FCC further 
addresses the rating and routing issues associated with porting numbers.  

6.
Finally, Staff recommends that the Commission authorize Ellington to block seven-digit dialed calls to ported numbers where the facilities and/or the appropriate third party arrangements have not been established.  In connection with this, Staff also recommends the Commission direct Ellington to establish an intercept message once the first number is ported, so that remaining Ellington subscribers are informed of any call rating and routing difficulties that may be associated with completing a call to a ported number. 


WHEREFORE, the Staff recommends that the Commission:

(1) 
deny Ellington’s request for a two-year suspension of the requirements of 47 U.S.C. §§ 251(b) and (c) as they pertain to local number portability;

(2)
allow Ellington six months from the date of the Commission’s order denying suspension to implement local number portability;

(3)
grant Ellington’s request for modification of the Federal Communications Commission local number portability requirements by stating in its order that neither Ellington, nor its wireline customers, will be responsible for any transport or long distance charges associated with porting numbers and any associated calls outside Ellington’s local service area;

(4)
authorize Ellington to block seven-digit dialed calls to ported numbers where the facilities and/or the appropriate third party arrangements have not been established; and

(5)
direct Ellington to establish an intercept message once the first number is ported, so that remaining Ellington subscribers are informed of any call rating and routing issues associated with completing a call to a ported number.
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� Quoting from, In the Matter of Telephone Number Portability, CC Docket No. 95-116, Memorandum Opinion and Order and Further Notice of Proposed Rulemaking, November 10, 2003, at para. 40.
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